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Mess, Camie

From: Mess, Camie
Sent: Thursday, April 18, 2019 10:52 AM
To: eh@mitchellmatthews.com
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: April BAR Action - 608 Preston Place

April 18, 2019  
  
Certificate of Appropriateness 
BAR 14-04-07 
608 Preston Place 
Tax Parcel 050108000 
Psi Chapter of Sigma Chi Fraternity House Corp, Owner/John Matthews, Applicant 
Sigma Chi Renovations and Addition: Lighting 
 
Dear Applicant,  
  
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural Review 
(BAR) on April 16, 2019. The following action was taken:  
 

Motion: Schwarz moved having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City 
Design Guidelines for Site Design and Elements, I move to find that the proposed lighting plan satisfies the 
BAR’s criteria and is compatible with this property and other properties in the Rugby Road-University 
Circle-Venable Neighborhood ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted, with 
the specification for the hanging pendent as described during the meeting (Type A LED blub.) Balut 
seconded. Approved (7-0). 

 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at: 
http://charlottesville.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1360 
 
This certificate of appropriateness shall expire in 18 months (October 16, 2020), unless within that time period you have 
either been issued a building permit for construction of the improvements if one is required, or if no building permit is 
required, commenced the project. You may request an extension of the certificate of appropriateness before this approval 
expires for one additional year for reasonable cause. (See City Code Section 34-280. Validity of certificates of 
appropriateness.)  
  
If you have any questions, please contact me at 434-970-3998 or messc@charlottesville.org.  
  
Sincerely,  
Camie Mess 
 
 
Camie Mess 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
City of Charlottesville 
Phone: 434.970.3398  
Email: messc@charlottesville.org 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 
BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
STAFF REPORT  
April 16, 2019 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness 
BAR 14-04-07 
608 Preston Place 
Tax Parcel 050108000 
Psi Chapter of Sigma Chi Fraternity House Corp, Owner/John Matthews, Applicant 
Sigma Chi Renovations and Addition 
 

  
Background 
Constructed in 1929, 608 Preston Place is a contributing structure in the Rugby Road-University Circle-Venable 
Neighborhood ADC District.  
 
The property is zoned R-3 Residential. The maximum height permitted is 45 feet, with additional height allowed 
by SUP; maximum density is 21 units/acre, or up to 87 DUA by special use permit. There is a 25 foot minimum 
rear setback. Parking required for a fraternity is 2.5 spaces per 3 bedrooms. 
 
Prior BAR Actions (See appendix) 
  
Application 
Applicant submittal: 

• Mitchell/Matthews submittal dated March 26, 2019: revised lighting plan (page 2-3), cut sheets (page 4-
9), elevations and scone placement (10-12), large sheet lighting plan (2 sheets) 

 
Request for exterior lighting, cut sheets included.  
 
Discussion and Recommendations 
Staff recommends all exterior lighting, including the LED lighting mounted lights should have warm color 
temperature less than 3000K.  Any exterior lamp that emits 3000 or more lumens shall be a full cutoff luminaire. 
 
Suggested Motions 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines for Site 
Design and Elements, I move to find that the proposed lighting plan satisfies the BAR’s criteria and is 
compatible with this property and other properties in the Rugby Road-University Circle-Venable Neighborhood 
ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted (or with the following modifications…). 
 
...as submitted and with the following modifications/conditions:...  
 
Denial: 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines for Site 
Design and Elements, I move to find that the proposed lighting plan does not satisfy or the BAR’s criteria and 



608 Preston Place (April 1, 2019)   2 

guidelines and is not compatible with this property and other properties in the Rugby Road-University Circle-
Venable Neighborhood ADC District, and for the following reasons the BAR denies the application as 
submitted:… 
 
Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 
Review Criteria Generally 
Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that,  
In considering a particular application the BAR shall approve the application unless it finds: 
(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable provisions of 

the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and 
(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in which the 

property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application. 
 
Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 
1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed addition, 

modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the site and the applicable 
design control district; 

2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and placement of entrances, 
windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of 
4) Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 
5) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood; 
6) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as gardens, 

landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 
7) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an adverse impact on 

the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 
8) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 
 
Pertinent Guidelines for Site Design and Elements 
D. LIGHTING 
Charlottesville’s residential areas have few examples of private site lighting. Most houses, including those used 
for commercial purposes, have attractive, often historically styled fixtures located on the house at various entry 
points. In the commercial areas, there is a wide variety of site lighting including large utilitarian lighting, 
floodlights and lights mounted on buildings. Charlottesville has a “Dark Sky” ordinance that requires full cutoff 
for lamps that emit 3,000 or more lumens. Within an ADC District, the BAR can impose limitations on lighting 
levels relative to the surrounding context.  

1) In residential areas, use fixtures that are understated and compatible with the residential quality of the 
surrounding area and the building while providing subdued illumination.  

2) Choose light levels that provide for adequate safety yet do not overly emphasize the site or building.  
Often, existing porch lights are sufficient.  

3) In commercial areas, avoid lights that create a glare.  High intensity commercial lighting fixtures must 
provide full cutoff.  

4) Do not use numerous “crime” lights or bright floodlights to illuminate a building or site when 
surrounding lighting is subdued.  

5) In the downtown and along West Main Street, consider special lighting of key landmarks and facades to 
provide a focal point in evening hours.  

6) Encourage merchants to leave their display window lights on in the evening to provide extra 
illumination at the sidewalk level.  

7) Consider motion-activated lighting for security. 
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Appendix: Prior BAR Actions 
June 21, 2011 - 608 Preston Place - Preliminary discussion. BAR accepted (6-0) the applicant’s request for 
deferral regarding the BAR’s recommendation on the Special Use Permit.  
 
January 17, 2012 – BAR accepted (9-0) the applicant’s request for deferral.  
BAR issues focused on the effect on the character of the historic district, the effect on the building independent 
of surroundings, and the architectural detailing.  

• the program is too intensive for the site (double the square footage);  
• enormous increase in impervious area;  
• need to use landscaping to screen activities;  
• the house corporation should join the conversations that the architect has been having with the 

neighborhood, (the real issues are programmatic and managerial – need agreement how special events 
and parking could be handled);  

• the addition does not meet the guidelines in terms of extent of demolition, size in relation to house, 
effect of building and activities pushed to the property lines;  

• project is overwhelming and out of scale to house and neighborhood. 
 
March 18, 2014: BAR approved (5-0) the renovations and addition as submitted, with bollards added to protect 
hedges, and option to use a metal roof over the additions. 
 
March 13, 2019: BAR approved (5-1, with Miller opposed)  

• Addition of a fence to be 6 foot metal back to the front plane of the house (on the north border), then 8 
feet pressure treated from that point to the back of the property. This was considered because of the 
security concern, support from the neighborhood, and it was a fraternity house located next to a 
residential house.    

• Replace the Japanese maple in the north corner with a medium/large size tree from the city’s tree list or 
a larger, green species of Japanese maple    

• Defer the spot lights, to come back for approval The drawing we are approving are dated December 18, 
2018 and the amended drawings dated March 4, 2019.  
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Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp Number
Lamps Filename Lumens Per

Lamp
Light Loss

Factor Wattage

C

1 Winona Lighting WFP5520 16DIA SCHOOL
2/32TRT 120 IMB OG AB

2/32W SYL TRIPLE CF 16''DIA
SCHOOLHOUSE PENDANT
LUMINAIRE WHITE SCHOOLHOUSE
GLASS GLOBE UNIVERSAL
BALLAST #C242UNVSE
WATTS=84

2/32W SYL TRIPLE CF 2 WFP5520_16DIA_
SCHOOL_2_42TRT
_120_IMB_OG_AB
.ies

3000 0.9 84

H
3 Lithonia Lighting WST LED P1 30K VW

MVOLT
WST LED, Performance package 1,
3000 K, visual comfort wide,
MVOLT

LED 1 WST_LED_P1_30K
_VW_MVOLT.ies

1548 0.9 12

Luminaire Locations

No. Label MH Orientation Tilt

1 C 8.00 0.00 0.00
1 H 6.00 270.00 0.00
2 H 12.60 270.00 0.00
3 H 12.60 0.00 0.00

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

Property Line 0.0 fc 0.1 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
Sigma Chi Lighting on Existing
House 0.5 fc 18.2 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
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Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufactur
er

Catalog
Number Description Lamp Number

Lamps Filename Lumens Per
Lamp

Light Loss
Factor Wattage

A
0 FSC MIRUS

LIGHTING
Motus 4-
26WT D-OS-
EMR IR-DL

MOTUS 1 MOTUS-4-
26WT-8-40K-
-D-
OS_IESNA20
02.IES

3258 0.9 27.3

B

0 Lithonia
Lighting

BLWP4 40L
ADPT LP830

BLWP 4ft 4000
Nominal Lumens,
Curved Linear
Prismatic lens with
trim rings, 3000K
CCT, 80CRI

LED 1 BLWP4_40L_
ADPT_LP830.
ies

4107 0.9 34.54

C
3 Lithonia

Lighting
WL4 40L
LP830

WL4 4ft 4000
NOMINAL LUMENS
3000K

LED 1 WL4_40L_LP
830.ies

3927 0.9 39.48

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

Calc Zone #2 7.9 fc 18.4 fc 3.0 fc 6.1:1 2.6:1
Calc Zone #3 5.8 fc 10.6 fc 2.6 fc 4.1:1 2.2:1
Calc Zone #4 6.3 fc 11.0 fc 2.2 fc 5.0:1 2.9:1
Calc Zone #5 16.0 fc 47.3 fc 4.5 fc 10.5:1 3.6:1
Calc Zone #6 12.3 fc 25.5 fc 5.1 fc 5.0:1 2.4:1
Calc Zone #7 8.0 fc 9.4 fc 5.8 fc 1.6:1 1.4:1
Calc Zone #8 10.4 fc 19.6 fc 3.7 fc 5.3:1 2.8:1
Calc Zone #10 5.6 fc 13.4 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A
steps landing 6.9 fc 17.0 fc 2.5 fc 6.8:1 2.8:1
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This drawing is the property of the
Architect and may not be reproduced or
used without the expressed written
permission of the Architect.

The Contractor is  responsible for:
checking and verifying all levels ad
dimensions, and promptly reporting any
discrepancies to the Architect.
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